ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY COW TTEE
January 23, 2002
1:35 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Robin Tayl or, Chair
Senat or Dave Donl ey, Vice Chair
Senat or John Cowdery

Senat or Johnny Ellis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmation Hearing — Select Committee on Legislative Ethics
H. Conner Thonmas
Bonni e L. Mehner
Arthur S. Robi nson

W TNESS REG STER

H. Conner Thonms
P. O Box 865
None, AK 99762

Bonnie L. Mehner
3201 C Street #200
Anchor age, AK 99503

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 02-01, SIDE A

CHAIRVAN ROBIN TAYLOR called the Senate Judiciary Conmttee
neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Menbers present were Senator
Donl ey, Senator Cowdery, Senator Ellis and Chairman Taylor. The
order of business was Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics
Confirmati on Heari ngs.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR announced the first order of business would be
the confirmation hearing of H Conner Thomas on his appoi nt nent
to the Ethics Conmttee. He thanked M. Conner on behalf of the
commttee for volunteering to serve. He asked him to give the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 23. 2002



commttee a brief resune or coments inportant in evaluating his
appoi nt nent .

MR. H CONNER THOMVAS, Al aska Legislative Ethics Comm ttee nenber,
testifying via teleconference, said he had served on the
Legislative Ethics Conmittee for one term He had | earned what
his role was and the usefulness of the Ethics Commttee. He is
an attorney and has been practicing law in Nome since 1978,
starting wth Al aska Legal Services and the Public Defenders
Ofice and he has been the Magistrate. In 1986 he went into
private practice in a small general practice firm

He found work on the Ethics Commttee interesting and he felt it
was a public service. He found the tine commtnment was not so
great that it interfered with practicing | aw.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR thanked him for his service over the |ast year.
He asked if there were questions fromthe commttee nenbers. He
asked M. Thomas if this commttee had previously confirnmed him

MR. THOVAS answered yes, for the first service.

SENATOR DONLEY asked if he had reviewed sone of the changes in
the ethics law that passed with SB 103 (El ection Canpai gns and
Legi sl ative Ethics).

MR. THOMAS answered that he was aware of the changes but had not
reviewed themin depth.

SENATOR DONLEY said there were a couple of changes that seened
specifically directed at decisions of the Ethics Commttee. The
Ethics Commttee mght have felt constrained by the way the
statute was witten causing themto do sonmething with which they
m ght not have even agreed with.

He gave an exanple of an ethics opinion that said it would be
inproper to use state resources to ship conputers that
| egi sl ators had bought with their own resources but were using in
their office for state business. That was one of the provisions
in SB 103 that was directly overturned. He didn't understand
that decision because for a long tinme it was very hard to get
equi pnent out of the |eadership in the legislature. Legislators
woul d buy equi prent with their own funds or canpaign funds. The
opinion that it wasn't appropriate for the state to pay to bring
t hose conputers down so people could use them for state business
did not nake sense to him He said the Ethics Commttee got a
little carried away. He thought naybe they felt constrained by
the way the specific statute was witten but the result didn't

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- January 23. 2002



seem to nmake common sense. He hoped sone of those problens had
been fixed in SB 103.

MR. THOMAS didn’t think he could coment on that particular
opi ni on because he was not a part of that group at the tine that
particular decision was rendered. He said, based on his
experience on the conmttee, people do spend quite a bit of tine
| ooking at the real inpact of what the decision is going to be.
They are constrained to a large extent by the |anguage in the
statute and it may be that was the reasoning of the conmttee
that it did not fit with the [|anguage. He said even though
sonething may have a common sense outcone if it is contrary to
the clear statutory |anguage then he did not think the commttee
had a | ot of choice. Hopefully it conmes back to where it has in
this case, for the Legislature to make the deci sion about whet her
it should be nodified. He understood that any individual given
set of facts mght result in an odd result at tines.

SENATOR DONLEY said one of the big challenges of ethics laws is
to craft them in such a way that it applies reasonably to the
vast mgjority of circunstances.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said that M. Thomas was constrained, just as
Senator Donley, hinself and any |awer that serves in public
office, to reveal in your APOC (Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion)
di scl osure:

e Alist of all clients fromwhomyou receive nore than $1000.

e To provide a separate listing of any client on whose behal f
you may have contacted a state agency.

« To list what that agency is.

He asked M. Thomas to give his opinion as to the inherent
conflict that exists between the |egal canons of ethics that
| awyers are sworn to uphold and carry out, and the requirenents
of that disclosure.

MR. THOVAS answered that he felt the problema | ot of people have
with that is when someone comes into your office they expect you
to keep the matter confidential unless you end up in court. A
|l ot of situations they deal with don’t go to court. Sone people
are unhappy with the fact that their nanes appear in a list as
having consulted with an attorney. That is a conflict as he sees
it and understands sone people have a very strong feeling that
they shouldn’t have to disclose that and in fact refuse to serve
on this conmttee or others as a result of that. That is the
conflict. He said he had given it quite a bit of thought and
thinks it 1is appropriate because of the possibility of a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 23. 2002



significant financial connection that may influence a decision
one way or the other. He said he definitely understood the
conflict.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said he wasn't arguing whether or not it was
appropri ate. He shared the concerns about msuse of office by
those who mght fail to disclose such a conflict. He asked if he
al so report the clients of his associates within the firm

MR. THOVAS said that was correct.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR recounted a personal situation where for sone
years he nmaintained a l|law practice in Petersburg with an
associate and in Wangell with a couple of associates. He had
submtted the required lists to APOC. A newspaper published al
those contacts between his offices and state agencies in the
newspaper wth the clients’ nanes and what agency had been
contacted. He received a phone call froma famly in Petersburg
because that was how their seven-year-old daughter found out she
was adopted, by reading it in the newspaper.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said his office didn’t see a new client for about
three nonths. Hi s associate decided that he could not |ive under
that sort of a constraint and practice |aw nmeaningfully so that
office was closed. He said the conflict he was referring to was
that his associate had to have his nane published, the client’s
nanme published and the fact that he had been required by the | aw
to contact the Departnent of Health and Social Services at that
time to get confirmation that he could nove forward wth an
adopti on.

Chai rman Tayl or said he raised the point because these things do
have an effect though he still believed in the appropriateness.
He explained how people in the legislature, calling thenselves
consul tants made hundreds of thousands of dollars a year working
for various interests. Wen asked by the press what they did for
those dollars they said they secured permts for them through
state agencies. He didn't think it was an appropriate action and
out of it cane laws |ike those being discussed. It troubled him
and he was glad to hear that M. Thonmas had thought about it too,
as it involves professionals who choose to volunteer for public

service and it has a chilling inpact upon candi dates. He
specified those who practice |aw because he thought he is the
only legislator who nmamintains an active practice of |aw He

wanted M. Thomas to understand the basis and reason of his
guestion and appreciated his candor and the thoughtful ness of his
answer .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 23. 2002



MR. THOVAS said initially he couldn’t believe they were asking
those questions, that it wasn't appropriate or right, but after
goi ng through the statutes he determned it was exactly what they
wer e asking. He said his position did change after thinking
about it.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said the privilege is actually a privilege that
belongs to the client. He said many firnms have been faced with
each client having to sign a piece of paper as they becane a
client of the firm volunteering that those matters they were
di scussing with that attorney could be made public through this
process. He asked if he did that in his firm

MR. THOVAS answered that they don't and he wouldn't release the
matters that were actually discussed. All that is released is
t he nane of persons who had paid his firmover $1000.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said he thought that if you have contact with a
state agency you had to disclose that.

MR. THOVAS said he did not have that type of practice.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said he didn’t think he did either, in a whole
year his firm had about five things, but attorneys do end up
maki ng contact with state agencies at tinmes and it was sonet hing
to think about. He said he would appreciate, in the future, M.
Thomas’ s coments and thoughts on that. He asked for any further
guesti ons. Hearing none, he thanked M. Thonmas for his service
and his willingness to serve in the future.

SENATOR CONDERY made a notion to accept H Conner Thonmas to be
appointed to the board of the Select Commttee on Legislative
Et hi cs and asked for unani nbus consent.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said there being no objection the letter
approving M. H Conner Thomas to the Select Comrittee on
Legislative Ethics would be sent to the full Legislature for
consi derati on.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR announced Bonnie L. Mehner as the next person for
consideration. He asked Ms. Mehner to present her background for
the committee’s information.

M5. MEHNER, testifying via teleconference, inforned themthat she
was a 40 year resident of Al aska and had been practicing real
estate in Anchorage for the past 27 years. She serves as Chair
of the Alaska Community Foundation, Trustee on Alaska Pacific
University’'s Board, and was appointed by Justice Fabe in My to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 23. 2002



fill out the term of another attorney who renoved hinself from
the commttee for many of the points discussed with M. Thonas.
She had attended several conmttee neetings and found the
di scussion of ethics in detail very interesting. She did not
feel it was an overwhelmng tinme commtnent and it is something
she woul d be able to do.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR t hanked her for her service and her wllingness
to serve in the future. There were no questions for Ms. Mehner.

SENATOR CONDERY nade a notion to accept Bonnie Mhner to be
appointed to the board of Select Committee on Legislative Ethics.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said there being no objection the letter
approving Bonnie L. Mehner to the Sel ect Conmttee on Legislative
Et hics woul d be sent to the full Legislature for consideration.

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR called for Arthur S. Robinson. He was not
avai |l abl e via tel econference.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR announced they would try to run conmttee
hearings three tinmes per week but with everyone’s busy schedul es
it appeared that Fridays mght be difficult. They would try to
do nost of their work on Mondays and Wednesdays.

SENATOR ELLI S asked what sort of issues and types of |egislation
did he expect to be the major focus of his commttee this year.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR answered that he did not have an agenda. Some
things left over from last year are, liability imunity, which
would be comng from the House, equine imunity and sone
insurance bills. He said Senator W1l ken wanted them to consi der
one on donestic |law, whether or not couples could get |egal or

bi ndi ng separation as opposed to a divorce. He felt it was a
topic worth discussion and they should decide if they wanted to
nove forward on that but he did not have an opinion on it. He

asked if Senator Ellis had sone in m nd.

SENATOR ELLI S said he had none at that tine but would | ook at the
list.

SENATOR CONDERY said he was |ooking at some |egislation on DW
i ssues and mandatory i nsurance issues.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said they still had one DW bill on forfeiture of

| i cense. He thought the Governor and Senator Ward had each
i ntroduced one.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 23. 2002



SENATOR COWDERY said he had been talking to Anchorage Police
Oficers. He explained that currently if someone is pulled over
and suspected of DW and if they refuse the Breathalyzer it is
sort of an adm ssion. However the paperwork involved for the
of ficer takes about 4 hours during which he is off the street.
This is required to make sure it holds. Senator Cowdery said he
was researching other states to see how they do it. He wants
officers spending nore tine on the streets and less tinme doing
t he paperwork, which is often overtine.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said when he was a judge when soneone wal ked
t hrough the door with the conplaint and all the police paperwork
was already done it took a m ninmum of 37 different pages just to
process them through the court system He thought it was
overwhel m ng and there should have been an easier way but nuch of
it is due to how they drew the regulations and set up the
adm ni strative procedures.

SENATOR CONDERY said he had sone patrol officers contact him and
was working with them to see how other states have done things
that sped up the process and put the police back on the street.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR adj ourned the neeting at 1:58

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 23. 2002



